
  
 

 
 

 

Tuesday, December 13, 2016  
 

 

7:00 PM Council Regular Meeting 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation 

3. Approval of Agenda  

4. Recognitions and Presentations  

a. Autumn Care Resolution 

b. AOT – Downtown Art 

5. Public Comments  

This portion of the meeting is to receive comments from the public on items not included in this agenda.  
Citizens should sign up prior to the start of the meeting.  The Council is interested in hearing your concerns, 
but may take no action or deliberate on the subject matter at this time.  Topics requiring further investigation 
will be referred to the appropriate town officials or staff and may be scheduled for a future agenda.  Each 
speaker limited to 3 minutes with a total of 15 minutes allotted for this purpose. 

 

6. Consent Agenda   

a. Approval of Minutes –  Regular Meeting/Work Session November 22nd  

b. Acceptance of Monthly Finance Reports 

i. Invoices 
ii. Revenue & Expenditure Reports 

iii. Reserve Balance/Investment Report 
 

c. Acceptance of the FY2016 Financial Report (Audit) 

d. Budget Amendments 

e. FY2018 Budget Calendar 

7. Public Input 

a. FY2018 Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 

8. New/Unfinished Business/Items for Discussion (40 minutes) 

a. Consideration of Vehicle for Hire application 

b. Consideration of Utility Bill Adjustments 

i. Joy Foods  ii.  Abbott Nutrition 

Town of Altavista 
 

Town Council  
Regular Meeting Agenda 

J.R. “Rudy” Burgess Town Hall 

510 7th Street 

Altavista, VA  24517 



Town Council Meeting Agenda   Tuesday, December 13, 2016 

 

 

c. Consideration of English Park   

d. CY2017 Meeting Schedule 

e. Consideration of FY2018 Transit Budget 

f. Consideration of Altavista Police Department personnel request 

g. Clarion Road Signalization  

h. Rt. 29 Bridge Light Project 

i. WWTP EOP PCB Proposals 

j. Town Cell phone policy 

 
9. Reports 

a. Town Manager’s Report 

b. Departmental Reports 

 

10. Informational Items/Late Arriving Matters 

11. Matters from Council 

12. Closed Session 

a. Section 2.2-3711 (A)(3) – Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property, 
where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or 
negotiating strategy of the public body (Recreation and Economic Development) 

 
b. Section 2.2-3711 (A)(7) – Consultation with legal counsel employed or retained by a public 

body regarding specific legal matters requiring the provisions of legal advice by such counsel. 
(Economic Development and Utilities) 

 
13. Adjournment 

 

UPCOMING COUNCIL MEETINGS/ACTIVITIES 

 (All meetings are at Town Hall unless otherwise noted) 

Tuesday, January 10, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.  Town Council Regular Meeting 

 

 

 

 

Notice to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act:  Special assistance is available for disabled persons addressing Town 
Council. Efforts will be made to provide adaptations or accommodations based on individual needs of qualified individuals with 
disability, provided that reasonable advance notification has been received by the Town Clerk’s Office.  For assistance, please 
contact the Town Clerk’s Office, Town of Altavista, 510 Seventh Street, Altavista, VA  24517 or by calling (434) 369-5001. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to participate in your Town Council meeting.  The Mayor and Members of Council invite and 
encourage you to attend whenever possible because good government depends on the interest and involvement of citizens.  

 



 
 
 

 
ALTAVISTA TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda Item Summary - Staff Report 
 
 
Date:  December 13, 2016 
 
To:  Mayor Mattox and Council members 
 
FROM: Waverly Coggsdale, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Recognitions/Presentations 
 

 

 

Autumn Care - Resolution 

 
Autumn Care received the Bronze Quality Award from the American Health Care 
Association.  This is a Baldridge Award designed for the Healthcare profession.  Also in 
August of this year, Autumn Care qualified for the 5-star rating from the Centers for 
Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), which is the highest rating. 

 

 

Altavista On Track 

 
As you may recall, Altavista On Track received a Virginia Commission for the Arts 
“Local Government Challenge Grant” in the amount of $5,000 which required a Town 
match of $5,000.   The approval of the match is included in the Budget Amendments on 
the Consent Agenda, based on previous consensus by Town Council.  The attached 
flyer seeks community design input in regard to a mural that would be on the wall in 
front of Altavista Appliance on 7th Street.   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: 4a 



 

PROCLAMATION FOR AUTUMN CARE OF ALTAVISTA 

 

WHEREAS, Autumn Care of Altavista was recently presented the Bronze Quality Award, the 

Baldrige Award for the Healthcare profession, from the American Health Care Association and 
qualified for the 5 Star rating from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (the highest 
rating a facility can achieve); and 

WHEREAS, Autumn Care has called Altavista home since 1989, providing care for patients 

during those 27 years.  The facility has 127 beds and employs over 128 health care 
professionals; and 

WHEREAS, Autumn Care of Altavista specializes in respectful and compassionate choices: 

short-term rehabilitation, long-term skilled nursing care, and respite care.  They offer 
specialized programs and individualized care plans designed to achieve the optimal care for 
their patients; and 

WHEREAS, Autumn Care of Altavista offers a home-like atmosphere that is appreciated by 

both residents and their families.  Their team of dedicated professionals strive to provide the 
highest level of medical and nursing care; now there 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Altavista Town Council recognizes the contributions to our community 

as a corporate citizen and would like to acknowledge Autumn Care for their professionalism 
and dedication to their patients, employees and the Altavista community; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution is presented to Autumn Care of 

Altavista for their recent award and recognition and continued service in our community. 

 

Adopted the 13th day of December 2016. 

 

       _______________________________________ 

       Michael E. Mattox, Mayor 



 

Calling All Artists…. 

Altavista On Track is collecting designs from the public for a mural downtown. 

The mural will be painted on the retaining wall in front of Altavista Appliance 

Home & Lawn Center on 7th Street (please keep this space in mind when 

submitting design).  

The design must include:  

 The name ‘Altavista’ 

 Design should include some Altavista elements (i.e.: history, 

outdoor recreation, businesses, etc…) 

 

Designs can be emailed to EHGwynn@AltavistaVA.gov or mailed to 

P.O. Box 283 Altavista VA, 24517. Electronic copies are preferred.  

Please send your name & contact information attached to the design by 

January 10, 2017.  Applicants are limited to submitting ONE design. The 

final design will be approved by the Town of Altavista.  

After the final design is selected, a mural artist will be contracted 

separately. For more questions, please contact 434-369-5001.  

 

This project is supported through:   

ART downtown 

mailto:EHGwynn@AltavistaVA.gov


 
 
 

ALTAVISTA TOWN COUNCIL 
Agenda Item Summary - Staff Report 

 
 
Date:  December 13, 2016 
 
To:  Mayor Mattox and Council members 
 
FROM: Waverly Coggsdale, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Consent Agenda 
 

 

One motion to approve the Consent Agenda will include each motion for the specific items listed below: 

 

 

Minutes: Regular Meeting/Work Session November 22nd (No Quorum)            

(Motion to Approve the Minutes as presented or amended.) 

 

 

Monthly Finance Reports:  Invoices, Revenues & Expenditures Report, and Reserve Balance/Investment 

Report 

(Motion to Accept the Finance Reports) 

 

 

Acceptance of FY2016 Financial Report (Audit)   

 

  (Motion to accept the FY2016 Financial Report as previously presented) 

 

 

Budget Amendments   

 

  (Motion to approve the Budget Amendments as presented) 

 

     

FY2018 Budget Calendar   

 

  (Motion to approve the FY2018 Budget Calendar) 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: 6 a-d 



  

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING/WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

    

 

The regular meeting/work session of the Council of the Town of Altavista was held in the Council 

Chambers of the J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street, on November 22, 2016 at 

5:00 p.m. 

 

1. Mayor Mattox called the meeting to order and presided. 

 

2. Pastor Marci Huntsman, Lambs United Methodist Church and Evington United Methodist 

Church, gave the invocation. 

 

Council members 

 present:    Mayor Michael Mattox 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson 

Mr. Timothy George 

       

Council members 

      absent:    Mrs. Micki Brumfield 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  

Mr. Charles Edwards  

Mr. Jay Higginbotham   

  

 Also present:   Mr. J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 

     Mr. Daniel Witt, Assistant Town Manager 

     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Finance Director 

     Chief Mike Milnor, Police Department 

Mr. Dennis Jarvis, Economic Dev. Director 

     Mr. David Garrett, Public Works Director 

Mrs. Mary Hall, Administration 

 

3. Mayor Mattox advised due to the lack of a quorum this would be a discussion only 

meeting. 

 

4. Recognitions and Presentations 

 

a. AOT Update 

 

Ms. Jamie Glass, Altavista on Track Board President, addressed Council and advised 

on October 18th, 2016, Governor McAuliffe’s Office announced the Town of 

Altavista, Town of South Boston, City of Bristol, City of Franklin and City of 

Waynesboro were awarded the Virginia Community Business Launch Grant in the 

amount of $60,000.  These funds are being used for the Pop-Up Altavista Grant.  Ms. 

Glass stated on November 16, 2016, Altavista on Track had the Pop-Up Altavista 

awards night with three expansions and one new business receiving funding.  A total 

of $38,000 has been awarded; she noted another Pop-up program will be scheduled 

for the spring of 2017.  C&C Piping and Fabrication, Blum Esthetics, and Pretty 

Please received grants for expansion.  Adalyn’s received a grant for their new 

business.  Ms. Glass advised Altavista on Track has received a grant of $2,500 from 

Wal-Mart which will go towards the proposed canoe launch project.  She referred to 

the Lynchburg Business Magazine and noted Ms. Gwynn is featured in this magazine 

and named one of the Top 20 under 40 most influential young professionals.  Mr. 

Herb Miller, AOT Treasurer, was named 2016 Main Street Volunteer of the Year.  

Ms. Glass mentioned the Giblet Jog is scheduled for Thursday, November 24, 2016 

with 260 people registered to participate.  She noted a new sponsor this year; The 

Standard Insurance Company.  She thanked Council for their support. 

 

Mayor Mattox thanked Ms. Glass, Ms. Gwynn and Mr. Miller for making a 

difference in the community. 

 

 

 

 



  

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING/WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

 

5. Public Comments 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to speak on anything listed on the agenda or not 

on the agenda. 

 

No one came forward. 

 

Mayor Mattox left the Chamber at 5:10 p.m. to contact absent members of Council; he 

returned at 5:12 p.m.  He noted he was unable to contact Mr. Higginbotham or Mrs. 

Brumfield.  Mrs. Dalton had a previous engagement and made him aware she would not 

be in attendance prior to the meeting. 

 

6. Consent Agenda 

 

a. Approval of Minutes-Regular Meeting October 11th, Work Session October 25th 

b. Acceptance of Monthly Finance Reports 

i. Invoices 

ii. Revenue & Expenditure Reports 

iii. Reserve Balance/Investment Report 

c. Acceptance of FY 2016 Financial Report (Audit) 

 

7. Public Hearings 

 

8. New/Unfinished Business/Items for Discussion 

 

a. Consideration of English Park 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated Council has been considering whether to make a request of the 

Campbell County Board of Supervisors regarding a public hearing on the possible 

conveyance of their portion of English Park to the Town.  He presented Council with the 

requested information in regard to the County’s investment in the park property and any 

contributions to the Town.  Council has previously been provided with the Contract of 

Purchase between the Seller and the County, and provided relative excerpts from that 

document.  He noted while the Contract of Purchase addresses these issues, there is no 

agreement signed by both the County and Town.   

 

Mr. George questioned the contract. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated when the County purchased the property, there was a contract 

between the seller and the county.  The town is not a party in the contract.   

 

Mr. George confirmed the purchase price of the property was $150,000. 

 

Mr. George asked Mr. Witt if he worked with Ms. Mary Pascal to get the VDOT grant for 

the road and roof structure which he felt cost approximately $350,000. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale noted he is working on getting that cost. 

 

Mr. George felt this would be a substantial gift and that the town should ask for it.   

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated he would put this item on the December 13th, 2016 Regular Council 

meeting agenda. 

 

Mayor Mattox felt an additional work session is in order to catch up. 

 

   

 

 



  

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING/WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

b. Consideration of Vehicle for Hire Application 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised this is the process that Council goes through every year for the 

consideration of vehicle for hire application.  Mr. Thomas Kathan has made application 

for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to operate a “vehicle for hire” 

service in the town.  Pursuant to Chapter 82 of the Town Code, a Certificate of Public 

Convenience and Necessity (CoPCN) must be obtained to operate or cause to be operated 

public vehicles within the town.  This application has been filed in accordance with 

Chapter 82 of the Town Code.   He stated Council shall determine whether the public 

convenience and necessity requires the operation of the public vehicle for which the 

application has been filed.  Staff believes that providing transportation alternatives 

between Altavista and the Lynchburg area will be an enhancement to the citizens and can 

work in conjunction with the Town’s local transit system.   Mr. Coggsdale requested that 

this item be forwarded to the December 13th, 2016 Town Council meeting. 

Mayor Mattox asked that this item be listed on the consent agenda.  He apologized to Mr. 

Kathan for having to delay this decision. 

 

c. Joy Foods Utility Bill Adjustment Request 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the owner of Joy Foods (1028 Main Street) requested a second 

utility bill adjustment this past July.  The original adjustment that was approved by staff 

was granted on May 4, 2016 and was for $470.43, the original bill was $675.32.   The 

current adjustment request covers the bill immediately following the previous bill that 

was adjusted.  The item has been placed on Council’s agenda for consideration and 

disposition.  Mr. Coggsdale noted the owner of Joy Foods contacted him earlier in the 

day advising he would not be at the meeting due to illness.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked for a recommendation for a policy change in regards to two 

consecutive overlapping excessive water bills. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised he and Mr. Tom Fore would work on a draft policy for the 

December 13th meeting or the work session. 

 

d. December Work Session Date/FY2018 Budget Calendar 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the December Work Session is scheduled for December 27th 

which is a date that the Town offices are closed and noted a decision could be made on 

the work session at the December 13th meeting.  He also referred to the FY2018 Budget 

Calendar and since it cannot be adopted tonight, staff will move forward with Public 

Input Session at the December 13th meeting.   

 

e. Booker Building Preliminary Report 

 

Council previously requested staff to assess the condition of the Booker Building and 

evaluate possible renovations/upgrades to the facility.  Mr. Coggsdale stated Mr. Maurice 

Law, a local citizen, assisted staff with the review and was very instrumental in the 

facts/findings of the report noting this is a preliminary assessment.  Mr. Coggsdale 

thanked Mr. Law for his assistance; a tremendous asset in helping with the preliminary 

assessment.  Mr. Coggsdale has been in contact with the USDA about possible planning 

grants. 

 

Mr. Emerson asked if a work session could be scheduled in which Council members, 

AOT, and the public could do a walkthrough of the Booker Building to gather some 

renovation ideas. 

 

f. Consideration of Budget Amendments 

 

Mr. Coggsdale referred to the presented budget amendments noting all have been 

previously approved by Council either through a motion or a consensus except for a 



  

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING/WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

request by Chief Milnor for a redesign of the Altavista Police Department badge.  The 

revenue would come from the State Forfeiture Funds, not taxpayers’ funds.  This item to 

be added to the consent agenda. 

 

g. Rt. 29 Light Project Report 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated Virginia Department of Transportation is moving forward with the 

Rt. 29 Bridge Replacement (over the Staunton River) Project.  The tentative schedule for 

advertisement for construction is September 2018.  During the process of getting 

approval of the bridge design, there was conversation about the possibility of having 

lights installed across the bridge, as well on the approaches leading up to the bridge.  

Staff has worked with VDOT’s consultant, AECOM, in regard to analyzing the layout of 

lights, as well as a potential cost.  VDOT has indicated that no funds are included in the 

bridge project for lights, but has agreed to include in their bridge design the pedestals and 

the conduit for lighting that would provide for lighting to be installed after the bridge 

construction is complete.  He presented Council with AECOM’s Draft Lighting Cost 

Study, which sets forth two options for lighting, one would provide lights on both sides, 

while the other would provide lighting only along the walkway.   Staff believes lights on 

the bridge is very important, especially with the walkway encouraging pedestrian use.  It 

is staff’s recommendation to pursue AECOM’s “Pedestrian Lighting Alternative”, which 

proposes lighting on the northern (walkway) side of the bridge.  The estimated cost that 

would cover the bridge, the approaches from both Hurt and Altavista is $278,123, with an 

annual energy cost of $836.  Staff feels that during the two year lead up to actual bidding 

of the project, we can seek joint funding with the Town of Hurt through VDOT grant 

programs.  Staff is seeking Council’s input and direction on this item. 

 

Mayor Mattox advised he is in favor of the lighting and cannot image anything better 

then to come down the river and see the bridge lit up as a gateway to the community.   

 

h. Consideration of FY2018 Transit Budget 

 

Mr. Coggsdale referred to the budget information provided to Council for the FY2018 

Altavista Community Transit System Budget and asked Council to consider and review.  

Staff will be seeking action on this item at the December 13th Regular meeting. 

 

Mr. Witt addressed Council advising the bottom line of his Operational budget is 

$96,050.00; a 3% reduction in last year’s budget.  He noted the only CIP item is the 

purchase of a new bus.  Mr. Witt stated a new bus was purchased this year and it put 

money back into the budget.  He advised the additional funds will be used to replace a 

motor on the bus barn door.  Mr. Witt advised the anonymous donor of bus fares has 

given an amount that will allow for free bus fares for a year.  This money comes directly 

off the town match.  He stated 40% of his salary is paid by the grant and the net cost to 

run a bus system is approximately $10,000.  Mr. Witt stated he would like to see the 

Transit System continue as it serves the community well and is a blessing to those who 

don’t have transportation.   

 

Mr. Emerson asked what the cost would be for a trolley type bus. 

 

Mr. Witt advised he would check on this.  A 15-passenger bus is the maximum in which 

he is not required to have CDL drivers.  Mr. Witt stated he would have to look at the 

number of riders and see if he can justify a larger capacity bus; noting he is averaging 71 

riders per 10-hour shift.   

 

Mr. Emerson felt the trolley type bus is more inviting to the younger generation; noting it 

gives the businesses in town the opportunity to advertise on the bus as well.  There would 

be a different type of rider if the bus was more inviting to the younger generations.  He 

felt the present bus looks like a church bus and it would be great to have a trolley type 

bus in the community.   

 

Mr. Witt mentioned he budgeted for a wrap if the new budget is approved. 



  

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING/WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

 

Mayor Mattox stated he agrees with the wrap for the bus as a moving billboard for the 

Town.  He thanked Mr. Witt for what he had done noting the transit system has been a 

wonderful thing for the community. 

 

Mr. George asked for an update on the boat ramp. 

 

Mr. Witt advised a letter was received from DCR advising the grant was not received.  

He signed the contract for the appraisal which should be completed in December.  He 

stated this will allow him to move forward with securing the property easement from the 

Dalton family, the soft cost, then the design that has already be approved can begin.  He 

noted this will add sufficient weight to the application process.  Mr. Witt advised he 

would apply for the grant again August or September; if received, construction could 

begin in 2018. 

 

Mr. George asked if there were any other grants. 

 

Mr. Witt advised Southside Electric has contacted him with some interest in the project.  

He stated Ms. Gwynn has been working with him on possible grants. 

 

Mr. Emerson asked if there was anyone that could help the Town with this project. 

 

Mayor Mattox suggested making contact with Delegate Matt Farris for some assistance.   

 

Mr. Witt stated he would love to have someone in the community that has been 

supporting this project to champion support of the project; noting there is a 501C3 

established in Altavista on Track (there is no problem with citizens, businesses and 

industries getting behind this project). 

 

9. Reports 

 

a. Town Manager’s Report 

 

            Booker Building  

 

   Preliminary Report Issued to Council 

 

            WWTP EOP – PCB Remediation 

 

   Assisting with University of Iowa and UMBC (Sowers) in regard to their work. 

Working with Dr. Lowman on proposal for sampling on Plot 7—Mr. Coggsdale 

presented Council with a proposal from Dr. Lowman in regards to sampling on Plot 7 

noting he would bring this back to a future meeting. 

 

Mayor Mattox referred to Robert’s Rules of Order noting there was a vote to no longer 

fund PCB research but Council would fund PCB remediation and asked the Town 

Attorney how this would work. (Science pays for science; Town pays for remediation.) 

 

Mr. Eller stated the majority vote could bring it back up.  

 

            Mayor Mattox stated unless one of the four brings this matter up, this issue is mute. 

  

Mr. Emerson stated when he came on Council it was his understanding there was  lump 

sum of money set aside for future projects with PCBs. 

 

Mrs. Shelton advised the amount is $577,000. 



  

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING/WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

 

Mr. Emerson stated it is time to put these monies to use in the community as this is 

taxpayers’ dollars. 

 

Mr. George stated there seems to be guidelines from the EPA because of the PCBs put in 

there, when they were put in there, the Town is not required to do anything. 

 

Mr. Eller stated an Environmental lawyer is needed to clarify this letter.   

 

Mr. George stated it would be nice to retain an Environmental lawyer to clarify. 

 

Mr. Eller stated he didn’t know if a legal opinion of the letter had been received. 

 

Mayor Mattox noted research was being allowed at the PCB pond and DEQ was aware of 

this and that the pond is at 90% plus with natural degradation.  The town is doing exactly 

what was said we would do; continuing to support Dr. Lowman, Dr. Sowers and the 

people at University of Iowa in doing their research.  The other was to maintain control 

and enclosing the facility making it more of a storage facility which he felt the Director 

of Public Works was doing a great job with.  He feels Council is doing everything they 

are supposed to do. 

 

Mr. Eller stated he did not feel everything should be characterized as research with no 

remediation because the idea of the research is to find a method that will accelerate the 

remediation process.   

 

Mayor Mattox stated if you look at the new information from DEQ, it is not per site but 

an average of the entire area which may make the Town very close if not at the 50 parts 

per one million which is required by law. 

 

Mr. George suggested retaining an Environmental lawyer. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Mr. Coggsdale to contact an environmental Lawyer and ask him to 

review the letter and advise what the requirements are.  

 

            Compensation/Classification Plan Study and Personnel Policy Handbook 

 

    Conducted Conference Call to review progress. 

    Tentative date for presentation to Town Council in January 2017. (Work Session) 

    Personnel Policy Handbooks preliminary work underway. 

 

             Broadband Planning Grant 

 

    Met with consultant to go over preliminary report. 

   Tentative date for presentation in January 2017.  (Work Session) 

 

 

            Clarion Road Signal (Abbott) Project 

 

Met with Abbott and will forward an update at the December Town Council Regular           

Meeting. 

 

 

b. Departmental Reports 

 

10. Informational Items/Late Arriving Matters 



  

COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING/WORK SESSION NOVEMBER 22, 2016 

 

11. Matters from Council 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if there were any comments from Council.  There were none. 

 

12. Closed Session 

 

13. Adjournment 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if there was anything else to bring before Council. 

       

       The meeting was adjourned at 5:55 p.m. 

 

______________________________ 

       Michael E. Mattox, Mayor  

 

         ________________________________ 

       J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk 

 



ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                ACCOUNTING PERIOD 05/2017 

TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                           FROM: 11/01/2016  TO: 11/30/2016  

 

CHECK    VENDOR VENDOR                               CHECK             CHECK 

   NO        NO   NAME                                DATE            AMOUNT 

 

  35481     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             11/04/2016            385.00  

  35482     461 KATHI BOGERT                    11/04/2016            862.68  

  35483      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          11/04/2016          1,144.87  

  35484     583 CAMPBELL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY  11/04/2016            902.86  

  35485     592 CENTRAL VA COMMUNITY COLLEGE    11/04/2016          6,000.00  

  35486     728 COMCAST                         11/04/2016            125.64  

  35487     754 D L BRYANT HEATING & COOLING    11/04/2016          9,897.31  

  35488       1 DAVIS ENTERPRISES INC/ONE STOP  11/04/2016            198.75  

  35489     164 DMV                             11/04/2016            200.00  

  35490      20 J JOHNSON ELLER JR              11/04/2016          2,080.00  

  35491      71 FAIRPOINT COMMUNICATIONS        11/04/2016            362.77  

  35492     119 FOSTER ELECTRIC CO INC          11/04/2016            271.31  

  35493     622 HEYWARD SERVICES INC            11/04/2016            217.17  

  35494     332 HURT & PROFFITT INC             11/04/2016         14,400.00  

  35495      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  11/04/2016            890.00  

  35496     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  11/04/2016          2,541.65  

  35497 9999998 Moon, Sheila                    11/04/2016            150.00  

  35498     411 MANPOWER                        11/04/2016            919.60  

  35499       1 ROY TUCKER                      11/04/2016             49.76  

  35500      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  11/04/2016            253.15  

  35501      35 TREASURER OF VA/VITA            11/04/2016             21.49  

  35502      92 UNIFIRST CORP                   11/04/2016          2,279.21  

  35503     116 XEROX CORP                      11/04/2016            254.10  

  35504      84 ALTAVISTA JOURNAL               11/11/2016          1,385.88  

  35505     675 BKT UNIFORMS                    11/11/2016            623.62  

  35506     536 CAROLINA METER & SUPPLY         11/11/2016            774.94  

  35507      19 CARTER MACHINERY CO INC         11/11/2016          2,498.39  

  35508 9999997 CHUMLEY, ELLEN                  11/11/2016             59.10  

  35509     750 DESIGN NINE                     11/11/2016         16,400.00  

  35510      36 DOMINION VIRGINIA POWER         11/11/2016         36,260.97  

  35511     301 ENGLISH'S LLC                   11/11/2016            558.53  

  35512     599 FACILITY DUDE                   11/11/2016          2,200.59  

  35513     119 FOSTER ELECTRIC CO INC          11/11/2016          3,162.60  

  35514 9999999 GELCO FLEET TRUST     COUNTY    11/11/2016            799.50  

  35515      46 GENTRY LOCKE ATTORNEYS          11/11/2016            299.25  

  35516 9999997 GERHARDT, BRANT                 11/11/2016            102.44  

  35517      50 GRETNA TIRE INC                 11/11/2016          2,705.08  

  35518 9999997 JOHNSON, JOHN C.                11/11/2016            109.10  

  35519     411 MANPOWER                        11/11/2016          1,048.80  

  35520     300 NAPA AUTO PARTS                 11/11/2016            444.17  

  35521     454 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC         11/11/2016            658.34  

  35522      67 ORKIN PEST CONTROL LLC          11/11/2016            269.34  

  35523     510 RIVER VALLEY RESOURCES LLC      11/11/2016             62.55  

  35524     186 THE NEWS & ADVANCE              11/11/2016          2,076.00  

  35525     124 TREASURER OF VA                 11/11/2016         48,000.00  

  35526 9999998 Urquhart, Yvette                11/11/2016            150.00  

  35527     110 VUPS INC                        11/11/2016             71.40  

  35528     656 WATER MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS INC  11/11/2016          1,370.08  

  

 

 



  35529     658 WKDE-FM                         11/11/2016            215.00  

  35530     192 WW ASSOCIATES INC               11/11/2016          1,675.00  

  35531       1 JAMES GOGGINS                   11/17/2016   VOID     120.20  

  35532     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             11/17/2016            385.00 

  35533      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          11/17/2016          3,489.50  

  35534     294 BUSINESS CARD                   11/17/2016         14,095.29  

  35535     574 CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE     11/17/2016            125.00  

  35536 9999998 CLIMBING HIGHER MINISTRIES      11/17/2016            150.00  

  35537     619 DAVIS-FROST INC                 11/17/2016            789.85  

  35538     118 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC #75    11/17/2016          5,451.68  

  35539      41 FISHER SCIENTIFIC               11/17/2016          1,325.34  

  35540      52 HACH COMPANY                    11/17/2016          4,280.81  

  35541      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  11/17/2016            890.00  

  35542      58 INSTRUMENTATION SERVICES INC    11/17/2016            708.00  

  35543       1 JAMES GOGGINS JR                11/17/2016             60.10  

  35544     533 LYNN KIRBY                      11/17/2016            225.00  

  35545     158 KORMAN SIGNS INC                11/17/2016         10,446.42  

  35546     411 MANPOWER                        11/17/2016            972.80  

  35547       1 MARVIN JONES                    11/17/2016             85.00  

  35548 9999998 MAXEY, SARAH                    11/17/2016            150.00  

  35549     218 MINNESOTA LIFE                  11/17/2016            190.81  

  35550     755 NATURCHEM INC                   11/17/2016          8,820.00  

  35551     734 PEARSON EQUIPMENT CO INC        11/17/2016            106.30  

  35552      72 PHYSICIANS TREATMENT CENTER     11/17/2016            305.00  

  35553     588 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL   11/17/2016            151.93  

  35554     559 ROBINSON FARMER COX ASSOCIATES  11/17/2016         18,437.00  

  35555     752 SPRINGSTED INC                  11/17/2016          3,940.00  

  35556      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  11/17/2016            253.15  

  35557     700 WOODARD & CURRAN                11/17/2016         34,920.91  

  35558       9 AFLAC                           11/23/2016          2,196.49  

  35559      91 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD   11/23/2016         34,769.00  

  35560       1 BARRY STOCKS                    11/23/2016             60.10  

  35561       4 BOXLEY AGGREGATES               11/23/2016            867.89  

  35562     668 CAMPBELL COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVEL  11/23/2016          3,000.00  

  35563       1 JOSHUA DELAPPE                  11/23/2016            597.20  

  35564 9999997 MARTIN, MADISON ROSE            11/23/2016             63.68  

  35565     423 NTELOS                          11/23/2016            907.92  

  35566     379 REI CONSULTANTS INC             11/23/2016            328.19  

  35567 9999997 TRENT, JAMES MICHAEL            11/23/2016             34.10  

  35568     756 WAGEWORKS INC                   11/23/2016            122.32  

  35569     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             11/30/2016            385.00  

  35570     583 CAMPBELL COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY  11/30/2016            902.86  

  35571      28 COLUMBIA GAS                    11/30/2016            434.17  

  35572      32 CONTROL EQUIPMENT CO INC        11/30/2016         11,404.20  

  35573 9999998 COX, DEBORAH                    11/30/2016            150.00  

  35574 9999999 ENGLISHS INC                    11/30/2016            873.28  

  35575      46 GENTRY LOCKE ATTORNEYS          11/30/2016            142.50  

  35576     622 HEYWARD SERVICES INC            11/30/2016            281.81  

  35577      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  11/30/2016            675.00  

  35578       1 JEFFREY ROWLAND                 11/30/2016             92.20  

  35579     411 MANPOWER                        11/30/2016          1,037.40  

  35580     680 MCI COMM SERVICE                11/30/2016             32.34  

  35581       1 OWEN LAWHORNE                   11/30/2016            100.00  

  35582     758 PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY TREASURER   11/30/2016            280.42  

  35583      80 SOUTHSIDE ELECTRIC COOP         11/30/2016          1,046.93  

   

 



  35584     733 MARY STONE                      11/30/2016             96.00  

  35585      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  11/30/2016            253.15  

  35586      96 UNIVAR USA INC                  11/30/2016          1,645.16  

  35587     136 USABLUEBOOK                     11/30/2016          4,291.45  

 

        NO. OF CHECKS:   107                 TOTAL CHECKS         346,333.84  

 













































Town of Altavista

Grand Total of all Investments and Deposits 17,513,097.10$   

Balance as of November 30 , 2016 Reserve Policy

Non-Specific

Green Hill Cemetery 572,198.81

General Fund Reserves

Capital Improvement Program Reserves 3,492,476.13

Altavista EDA Funding 278,557.00 *

278,557.00

Enterprise Fund Reserves

Capital Improvement Program Reserves 225,393.45
PCB Remediation 577,818.83

Community Improvement Reserve 0.00

Police Federal 2,893.32

Police State 20,697.76

Public Funds Money Market Accounts 10,339,380.11  Includes Funds $289,501.55 for Proj 1B - Main St Waterline

Operating Checking Account (Reconciled Balance) 2,003,681.69

DESIGNATED FUNDS 3,455,847.41

14,057,249.69 General Enterprise Total

Reserve Policy Funds (This figure changes annually w/audit) -6,353,383.00 Policy $ 4,965,030 1,388,353 6,353,383
UNDESIGNATED FUNDS 7,703,866.69

NOTES: Earmarked for Final Downtown Map-21 Project -77,600.00

ED rem balance of $35,000(website and marketing) -6,240.00

FY 2015 Highway Carryover of Funds -543,260.20

Earmarked for AOT No Interest Loan Program -40,000.00

"Pop-Up" Altavista Funding -10,000.00

Accrued Liability -153,155.86

FY 14 Tank Maintenance -50,000.00

FY15 Projected Carryover Needs -140,000.00

FY 16 Projected Carryover Needs -224,900.00

Transit Funding -4,209.00
Funds for Project 1A - Bedford Waterline Imrpovement.  

Remaining funds will be used to cover Construction Admin 

for Proj 1B Main St. -85,316.28

Apprvd 9/22/15

Concept presented at work session for improvements to 

electrical at WTP and construction of new bldg to house 

electric panels

-1,041,859.80

Apprvd 5/10/16 Survey of canoe launch property -850.00

4/26/2016

 Consensus of Council to obligate a min for the purchase 

of site for canoe launch
-40,000.00

6/14/2016 Canoe Launch to get site ready -39,500.00

6/14/2016

Paving parking area of the park on Woodland Ave; 

included w Myrtle Lane paving
-4,000.00

Funds for Project 1B - Main Street Waterline Imrpovement -289,501.55

Dominion Service Line -86,834.47

Budget Earmarked for Pole Building (020-CIP item) -75,000.00

Budget Earmarked for repl. of 1999 dump truck (CIP Item) -85,500.00

Budget Earmarked for repl. of 2004 Street Sweeper (CIP Item) -50,000.00

Broadband Grant Funds for study -30,000.00
UNDESIGNATED RESERVE FUND BALANCE 4,626,139.53



 

Agenda Item:  __8f __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting/Work Session Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: November 22, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Budget Amendments  

 

Summary:  Attached is correspondence from Tobie Shelton, Finance Director, in regard to several budget 

amendments that need to be formalized.   Council has previously approved either through motion or a 

consensus the majority of the items, approval of the budget amendments finishes the process.  Included 

in the budget amendments, is a request by Chief Milnor for a redesign of the APD’s badge (information 

attached).  The revenue for this project would come from State Forfeiture Funds, not taxpayer’s funds. 

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):      

 

Adoption of the budget amendments as presented. 
 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Staff memo with support information; APD Badge Design 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   MLM 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   





























































 
PROPOSED BUDGET CALENDAR 

FY2018 BUDGET PREPARATION 

               

1 

November     Begin revenue forecasts, review Transit Budget;  

(Grant deadline is January), instruct department 

managers, and distribute copies of dept. budgets 

 

December 8    Public Input Session for FY 2018 Budget to be 

(Tuesday)   held during Council meeting. 

    

January       Council decision on updating wage/salary  

      (COLA) 

 

January 13     Department requests due by 5:00 p.m. 

(Friday) 

 

January 20     Written requests from outside agencies  

(Friday)     and non-profits due by this date 

 

February 14  7:00 p.m. Outside agencies/non-profits requesting funding  

(Tuesday) should attend Council meeting.  Revenue discussion. 

 

February 20     Council receives Draft Budget document 

(Monday) 

 

February 28  5:00 p.m.   Council Budget Work Session 

(Tuesday)      

 

March 28 5:00 p.m.   Council Budget Work Session 

(Tuesday)      

 

April 11          7:00 p.m.  First Reading of Budget/Designate Public  

(Tuesday)  Hearing for May 9th  

 

April 19     First Public Hearing Advertisement 

(Wednesday) 

 

April 26     Second Public Hearing Advertisement 

(Wednesday) 

 

May 9   7:00 p.m.   Public Hearing on the FY2018 Budget 

(Tuesday) 

 

June 13 7:00 p.m.   Council Meeting to approve FY2018 Budget 

(Tuesday) 



 

Agenda Item:  __7a __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  FY2018 Budget and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Citizen Input  

 

Summary:  Town Council seeks input from citizens prior to the development of the FY2018 Operating 
Budget and the FY2018-2022 Capital Improvement Plan.  Once input is received Council will direct staff 
on items that they wish to be discussed and/or considered in preparation of the draft budget/CIP 
document. 

 

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  No Action Requested.  Council may provide direction to 
staff in regard to items that should be discussed and/or considered in preparation of the budget/CIP.    

 
 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? No 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:    

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:  :   TCS 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   



 

Agenda Item:  __8a __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Consideration of issuance of a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 

(CoPCN) for TK’s Transport (Vehicle for Hire)  

 

 

Summary:  Mr. Thomas Kathan has made application for a certificate of public convenience and necessity 

to operate a “vehicle for hire” service in the town.  Pursuant to Chapter 82 of the Town Code, a Certificate 

of Public Convenience and Necessity (CoPCN) must be obtained to operate or cause to be operated public 

vehicles within the town.  This application has been filed in accordance with Chapter 82 of the Town Code.    

The Council shall determine whether the public convenience and necessity requires the operation of the 

public vehicle for which the application has been filed.  Staff believes that providing transportation 

alternatives between Altavista and the Lynchburg area will be an enhancement to the citizens and can work 

in conjunction with the Town’s local transit system.    

The Town Code requires that each individual that will drive/operate a public vehicle obtain a special license 

from the Altavista Police Department.   The code also states that each vehicle “shall have on the outside 

on both sides the name of the owner in letters not less than three inches high…” Also under Sec. 82-37 

certain insurance requirements are set forth. 

It is staff’s recommendation that a determination of public convenience and necessity be made allowing 

for: 1) the issuance of a certificate and the issuance of operator’s license, subject to the applicant adhering 

to the regulations set forth in Chapter 82 of the Town Code, and 2) to allow TK’s Transport to operate up 

to three (3) vehicle for hire (transit bus and passenger vehicles) as outlined in the application.  The applicant 

shall also comply with all other applicable local, state and federal regulations. 

Council granted a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity to Mr. Kathan last year for operation 

of two vehicles for hire. 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):      

 

1. Grant the request of Mr. Kathan for three (3) “vehicles for hire” (transit bus and passenger 
vehicles) based on a finding of public convenience and necessity. 
 

2. Deny the request to allow Mr. Kathan to operate up to three (3) “vehicles for hire” (transit bus and 
passenger vehicles) based on lack of public convenience and necessity. 

 

 

 



 

Agenda Item:  __8a __ 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  TK’s Transport CoPCN Application packet 

 

 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:    

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   























 

Agenda Item:  __8b __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Consideration of a Utility Bill Adjustments   

 

Summary:     JOY FOODS:  The owner of Joy Foods (1028 Main Street) previously requested a second 
utility bill adjustment this past July.  The original adjustment that was approved by staff was granted on 
May 4, 2016 and was for $470.43, the original bill was $675.32.   The current adjustment request covers 
the bill immediately following the previous bill that was adjusted.   The bill in question is $484.94.  Staff 
communicated to the individual in July 2016 that town policy only permits one adjustment per 12-month 
period.  The individual contacted the Town on November 4, 2016 in regard to further exploring the 
possibility or reconsideration of the second adjustment.  Accordingly, the item has been placed on 
Council’s agenda for consideration and disposition.  (Joy Foods Request info) 

 

If Council opts to grant a second request and utilizes the same methodology that staff uses for adjustments 
the bill would be adjusted by $327.34.  The two bills are summarized below: 

 

 Original Bill Adjusted Bill Amount Waived 

1st Bill Adjustment $675.32 $204.89 $470.43 

2nd Adjustment Request $484.94 $157.60 $327.34 

 

 

ABBOTT NUTRITION:     Additionally, staff has been working with Abbott Nutrition in regard to 
their request for a utility bill adjustment (attached) associated with the calibration of their internal meter.  
It does appear that an adjustment may be in order, utility staff may be able to provide additional 
information on this request.  Also, the Town has been working with Abbott on a redesign of how our 
meter and their meter are housed, ultimately the Town is looking at placing a meter outside of Abbott’s 
building in the right of way.  These plans are not finalized and at this time the Town is reading Abbott’s 
meter to billing purposes.  Staff is seeking Council’s direction on this item. (Abbot Request info) 

 

POLICY LANGUAGE CONSIDERATION:  Previously during conversations about second utility 
adjustments, staff was asked to consider possible policy language.  A copy of the language is attached for 
your review, with the new language in either red or green.  (Draft Policy document) 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Per Council’s discussion.    
 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  JOY FOODS:  Internal email with attachment; Quarterly bill (2nd 
Adjustment Request); Town Service Order Request; Initial Adjustment Request with support information   ABBOTT: 
Request info  POLICY: Draft policy language 



 

Agenda Item:  __8b __ 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   TF 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC   



















1 
 

Utility Billing Adjustment Policy 

 

Purpose: To provide guidelines for the adjustment of high utility bills caused by waterline leaks that the consumer could 

not reasonably have known about with normal diligence. The reason for providing a policy for reducing these bills is to 

reduce the financial burden on residents and other customers caused by no fault of their own. 

Water Charge Adjustments 

The Town Manager may approve adjustment of a customer’s water usage charge in cases subject to the following 

conditions: 

1. The customer must request an adjustment in writing fourteen (14) days from the date the water bill (to which the 

adjustment is sought) was issued. 

2. The customer must verify that the leak has been permanently repaired. 

3. The leak must be in the customer’s supply line, which is the portion of the water supply from the meter to the 

point of use. Leaking fixtures, malfunctioning appliances, running faucets, exterior hose connections, irrigation 

system leaks, and similar situations will not be eligible for a leak adjustment. 

Adjustments to the water usage charge will be based on “historic usage” of the customer, which shall reflect seasonal or 

other historic patterns. The Town Manager will review water bills for the four (4) previous billing periods. If the customer 

does not have at least four (4) previous bills to establish historical usage, then the adjustment will be based on available 

data. The Town Manager will credit the customer’s account for the 75% of excess water usage charge (the balance after 

“historic usage”). Only one adjustment will be allowed in any calendar year. Due to the three (3) month billing cycle an 

average bill for the next billing cycle will be reviewed, upon the request of the customer within 14 days of the bills 

issuance, and adjusted as necessary by the Town Manager if the consumption is greater than the historical patterns. This 

would be included in the one adjustment in the calendar year. 

Sewer Charge Adjustments 

The Town Manager may approve adjustment of the sewer usage charge if it is demonstrated the leaking water has not 

entered the sanitary sewer system. Leaks in waterlines, in which the water did not enter the sanitary sewer, will be based 

on historical usage only. Sewer adjustments will be based on the adjusted total of the water bill. Only one adjustment will 

be allowed in any calendar year. Due to the three (3) month billing cycle an average bill for the next billing cycle will be 

reviewed, upon the request of the customer within 14 days of the bills issuance, and adjusted for sewer usage as necessary 

by the Town Manager if there is a consumption adjustment given for water usage. This would be included in the one 

adjustment in the calendar year. 

Conditions 

The Town assumes no liability or responsibility for damage caused by leaks, or repairs or inspections necessitated by 

leaks. 

In no case shall the Town Manager approve an adjustment to water or sewer charges for abnormal water usage attributable 

to faulty toilets, leaking faucets, malfunctioning appliances, running faucets, exterior hose connections, irrigation system 

leaks, or other interior plumbing facilities (pipes, water heaters, furnaces, etc.) within the building the water meter serves. 

In no case shall the Town Manager approve an adjustment or prorating of the quarterly fixed water or sewer charge. 



2 
 

The burden of proof for adjustment of water and sewer usage charges resulting from abnormal water usage pursuant to 

this policy rests with the customer, not the Town of Altavista. Failure to act in accordance with this policy or meet the 

conditions as stated herein will result in a refusal by the Town Manager of an adjustment. 

Payment Plan 

For large leaks, a partial payment may be established, if the customer requests such an arrangement. To qualify for a 

partial payment, the bill must be more than one hundred dollars. ($100.00) 

The monthly partial payment must be a minimum of one-quarter of the total water and sewer bill due. Staff will give the 

customer information regarding the partial payment plan that details payments and due dates. The payment plan will apply 

only to the bill that was adjusted. Due to the three (3) month billing cycle if an additional payment plan is deemed 

necessary by the Town Manager the previous arrangement can be set up. All subsequent bills must be paid in full. Each 

customer is responsible for ensuring that he or she follows the payment dates to avoid service disconnection. 

If the account is not paid in full on the final due date, the customer will be responsible for the penalty amount that accrues 

on the unpaid account balance. Establishment of a partial payment plan does not allow the customer to avoid the 10% late 

payment penalty  

 

ADOPTED BY TOWN COUNCIL, DECEMBER ____, 2016 

 

 

 



 

Agenda Item:  __8c __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Consideration of Request to Campbell County for Conveyance of English Park  

 

Summary:  Council has been considering whether to make a request of the Campbell County Board of 
Supervisors regarding a public hearing on the possible conveyance of their portion of English Park to the 
Town.  As a recap: A Community Input Session was held at Council’s September 2016 Work Session with 
three residents appearing before Council expressing their interest in this moving forward.   Previously the 
Altavista Recreation Committee forwarded their recommendation that the Council pursue this property 
and submitted 249 signatures, with 102 of those listing their home address as being in the Town of 
Altavista.   The deed to the property indicates there is 146.39 acres more or less. 

 

Council has requested information in regard to the County’s investment in the park property and any 
contributions to the Town, that information is attached.  Council has also been previously provided with 
the Contract of Purchase between the Seller and the County, relative excerpts from that document are 
provided.  While the Contract of Purchase addresses these issues, there is no agreement signed by both the 
County and Town.  The Town issued a “Special Use Permit” at their September 11, 2007 meeting for this 
use, which included nine conditions which are attached.  

 

Previously staff provided Council the County’s Master Plan and the 2007 Concept of Construction Cost 
Estimate.   The original total probable cost was listed as $3,647,000/of that the entry road has been 
completed (which represented $647,300 of that total). 

 

Staff has discussed this property and has some initial thoughts on how to combine recreation and a water 
impoundment facility that could assist in our water treatment process.  If Council desires, staff can continue 
to evaluate this option and bring back preliminary information at a later date. 

 

This information is provided to Council as follow up to their previous discussion.  Staff seeks from Council 
any direction that needs to be pursued in regard to this item.   

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Per Council’s discussion.    
 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Campbell County Park Investments & Contract Excerpts related to 
Town, Campbell County Contributions to Town of Altavista; Town Issued Special Use Permit Conditions 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:    

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 



 

Agenda Item:  __8c __ 

 

 

   

  CAMPBELL COUNTY INVESTMENTS IN ENGLISH PARK  
 (as provided by Campbell County) 

 

 

FY2014  $ 34,948.29 

FY2015  $ 98,210.49 

FY2016  $   3,663.00 

FY2017  $       19.80 
 

 

TOTAL:  $ 136,841.58 
 

 

 

 

 

Seller/County Purchase Contract Excerpts relative to Town 
 

9a. …….The Purchaser agrees to fund 100% of the investments to the Property in a timeframe that 
coincides with funding provided for this purpose by the Campbell County Board of Supervisors.  
The development of the Property will be based on a master plan developed by the County with 
the assistance of a citizens group representing the area. 

 

9b. The Purchaser agrees to work with the Town of Altavista and maintain adequate security for 
the Property through the use of the Altavista Police Department.  The Purchaser and Town will 
jointly determine the service needs for such security and if any additional resources are 
required by the Town, any costs for such services will be borne by the Purchaser as a funding 
contribution annually to the Town, subject to annual appropriation by the Campbell County 
Board of Supervisors as required by law. 

 

9e. The Purchaser agrees to provide all maintenance funds needed for the proper upkeep of the 
Property for recreational use and agrees to continue to provide funding to the Town for 
upkeep of what is now known as Riverfront Park, subject to annual appropriation by the 
Campbell County Board of Supervisors as required by law. 

 







 

Agenda Item:  __8d __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Consideration of CY2017 Council Meeting Schedule 

 

Summary:  For the past two years, Town Council has met on the second and fourth Tuesday of each month, 

with the first meeting being a Regular Meeting held at 7:00p.m. and the second meeting being a Work Session 

held at 5:00 p.m.   Presentation of this calendar allows the Town Council the opportunity to consider in advance 

any conflicts the meeting schedule may have with other events or holidays and make changes to times or dates 

accordingly. 

With the Christmas holiday falling on a weekend, town offices will be closed on Tuesday, December 26th, which 

is the Work Session date for that month.  Staff would ask that Council consider either cancelling the December 

Work Session or rescheduling to another date. 

NOTE:  At adoption of the CY2016 Council Meeting Schedule, the December Work Session was deleted by a 

consensus of Council.  Therefore, there will be no December 27th Work Session. 

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Adopt the CY2017 Council Meeting Schedule, per 
Council’s discussion.    

 
 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  CY2017 Council Meeting Schedule 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:    

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   



CY 2017 Town Council Schedule 
Town of Altavista 

 
The Altavista Town Council meets the second Tuesday (Regular Meeting) at 7:00 p.m. and the fourth 
Tuesday (Work Session at 5:00 p.m. of each month in the Town Hall Council Chambers of the “J.R. 
“Rudy” Burgess Municipal Building”, located at 510 Seventh Street.   Except for periods of closed session 
that may be called within a meeting, the business sessions are open to the public.  The following 
schedule is for regular meetings (RM) and work sessions (WS) for Calendar Year 2017.  The Mayor and 
Town Council also may meet at other times and/or places in Special Meetings, which also are open to 
the public. 

 
 

Month Date 
 

Month Date 

January RM January 10th  July RM July 11th 

January WS January 24th  July WS July 25th 

February RM February 14th  August RM August 8th 

February WS February 28th  August WS August 22nd 

March RM March 14th  September RM September 12th 

March WS March 28th  September WS September 26th 

April RM April 11th  October RM October 10th 

April WS April 25th  October WS October 24th 

May RM May 9th  November RM November 14th 

May WS May 23rd  November WS November 28th 

June RM June 13th  December RM December 12th 

June WS June 27th  December WS December 26th 

 Holiday or Event Conflict    
 



 

Agenda Item:  __8e __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting/Work Session Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Consideration of FY2018 Altavista Community Transit System’s (ACTS) Budget 

 

Summary:  Attached please find a memo from Dan Witt, Assistant Town Manager, in regard to the Draft 
FY2018 Altavista Community Transit System Budget Request.   The budget request is also attached for 
your review.   The draft budget was presented at your November 22nd meeting for your consideration and 
review.  Staff is seeking action on this item at this time, so that it can be submitted within the required 
grant deadlines. 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:   Attached is follow up from last meeting regarding information 
on trolley type vehicles.  (Attachment) 

  

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Adoption of the FY211018 Altavista Community Transit 
System (ACTS) budget for submittal to DRPT for grant funding consideration.    

 
 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Staff Memo and FY2018 ACTS Budget Request 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   DNW 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   





























 

Agenda Item:  __8f __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Altavista Police Department personnel recruitment request 

 

Summary:  The Altavista Police Department has several open positions and Chief Milnor is working to 
recruit highly-qualified applicants.   Attached is a memorandum from the Chief indicating an issue that has 
hampered his ability to successfully bring in a veteran officer.   Staff feels this is a warranted request and 
would like to see Council approve this action.   There will be adequate funds in this year’s budget to cover 
this cost, due to vacant positions. 

It is important to point out that to this point (year to date), the APD has utilized $12,794 in “Overtime”; 
the adopted budget includes $11,000 and we are only 5 months into the fiscal year.  Being able to bring 
“certified” officers on board greatly assists with staffing and keeping the overtime in line.   Currently, the 
“Overtime” costs are being offset by the funds allocated to the positions that are vacant. 

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Per Council’s discussion.    

 
 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Chief Milnor memo 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   MM 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   



MEMORANDUM 

 

December 5, 2016 

 

TO:     Waverly Coggsdale, Town Manager 

FROM:   Mike Milnor, Chief of Police 

SUBJECT:  Police Department Vacancies 

 

The Police Department is currently down a total of three patrol officers.   There is a certified, 

experienced officer with 12 years of service wanting to join the  department.  This officer will 

need $42,000 annual salary to make the transition to our agency. The vacancy this officer will fill 

was formerly funded at $41,627 annual salary.   Currently there are two officers with almost 

identical service records here at Altavista Police Department both making slightly less than the 

$42,000 annual salary.  It would take a total of $3,711 in salary and benefits a year to bring these 

two existing members of the department up to $42,000. 

I am requesting bringing these two existing officer’s salaries up to the $42,000 mark and 

permission to bring in the certified officer at $42,000 also.  This allows for a seasoned certified 

officer to be brought into the department versus hiring a non-certified officer at a cost of $37,150 

and then taking an entire year to train before they become productive officers or can be put into 

the schedule rotation.    

 

 



 

Agenda Item:  __8g __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Consideration of Clarion Road Signalization 

 

Summary:  Previously Council considered the possibility of installing signalization on Clarion Road to 
alert motorists of the crossing of tractor trailers from the Abbott truck lot to the warehouse on the opposite 
side of the road (September Work Session item).  Two different options in regard to signals were presented 
and staff was asked to consult with Abbott on the matter.   

Staff met with Abbott representative and they recently indicated that due to spacing concerns they felt the 
“continuous” flashing sign would be adequate.   In addition, based on conversations with Abbott, the 
implementation would be 100% funded by the Town.  The quote for the “continuous” flashing signals is 
$11,802.06, which does not include the sign or installation.   The signals are solar powered.  It is staff’s 
understanding that the cost could be paid for with funds annually allocated by VDOT. 

Currently, there are “Industrial Intersection” signs leading up to this area, but they do not have flashing 
lights. 

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Per Council’s discussion.    

 
 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Flasher Quotes/Info; September Town Council Work Session form 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:    

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   



Quote
Date

9/9/2016

Quote #

6266

Name / Address

Town of Altavista
Attn:  Waverly Coggsdale
P. O. Box 420
Altavista, VA 24517

Ship To

Town of Altavista
Public Works Building
1311 3rd Street
Altavista, VA 24517

Terms

Net 30

Rep

PM

FOB

Destination

Delivery

30 Days ARO

Total

Customer Contact

Lynn David

Customer Fax

434-369-6981

Credit Cards Accepted (AMEX, VISA, MC)
Credit For New Customers Must Be Approved Before Acceptance Of Purchase Order

**PRICES GOOD FOR 30 CALENDAR DAYS FROM DATE OF THIS QUOTE.
Minimum restock fee of 25% will be charged for all items returned in new (unused) condition.
This Quotation includes and specifically incorporates herein by reference all terms and conditions set forth on the attached Special Terms & Conditions.
Acceptance of this Quotation by Buyer shall constitute acceptance of all terms herein as well as those set forth in the Special Terms and Conditions.

J. O. Herbert Company, Inc.
12626 Wilfong Drive
P. O. Box 5450
Midlothian, VA 23112
804-763-6480 / (fax)804-763-6490

Commonwealth of Virginia
SWaM certification

 #009860

Item Description Qty Cost Total

24 HOUR FLASHER SOLAR / PER LOCATION
RTC503568K Two Battery Cabinet including Panel, #2 Lock, Solar

Regulator, 4.5" U-Bolt Mount
1 1,372.00 1,372.00

RTC505408CE 125 Watt Solar Panel Assy with Mounting & Wiring 2 1,027.00 2,054.00

RTC500645 108 Amp Hour Battery 2 437.00 874.00

RTC Pole 15' 15' spun alum pole w/base, anchor bolts and collar 1 658.33 658.33

RTC502463-8W 12" Amber 12VDC LED (Pixelated) 2 90.00 180.00

RTC501422 12" Yellow poly signal heads 2 166.60 333.20

RTC503326 4.5" OD Top of Pole Mounting Bkts for 2 Solar Panels
110-130 Watt

1 290.00 290.00

RTC503375SS Mounting Hardware Pelco, SE-5186-ALO Side by Side 1 140.00 140.00

NOTE:  NO SIGN INCLUDED.

$5,901.53



Quote
Date

9/16/2016

Quote #

6281

Name / Address

Town of Altavista
Attn:  David Garrett
P. O. Box 420
Altavista, VA 24517

Ship To

Town of Altavista
Public Works Building
1311 3rd Street
Altavista, VA 24517

Terms

Net 30

Rep

Perry

FOB

Destination

Delivery

6 Weeks ARO

Total

Customer Contact

David Garrett

Customer Fax

434-369-6981

Credit Cards Accepted (AMEX, VISA, MC)
Credit For New Customers Must Be Approved Before Acceptance Of Purchase Order

**PRICES GOOD FOR 30 CALENDAR DAYS FROM DATE OF THIS QUOTE.
Minimum restock fee of 25% will be charged for all items returned in new (unused) condition.
This Quotation includes and specifically incorporates herein by reference all terms and conditions set forth on the attached Special Terms & Conditions.
Acceptance of this Quotation by Buyer shall constitute acceptance of all terms herein as well as those set forth in the Special Terms and Conditions.

J. O. Herbert Company, Inc.
12626 Wilfong Drive
P. O. Box 5450
Midlothian, VA 23112
804-763-6480 / (fax)804-763-6490

Commonwealth of Virginia
SWaM certification

 #009860

Item Description Qty Cost Total

RTC503333K One Battery Cabinet including 501505R Panel, No 2
Lock, Regulator w/900 mhz Radio

2 1,983.33 3,966.66

RTC503568K Two Battery Cabinet including 501505RR Panel, #2
Lock, Regulator, 4.5" U-Bolt Mount, includes Radios

2 3,295.00 6,590.00

RTC505462 50 Watt Solar Panel Assy, includes mounting and wiring 2 561.67 1,123.34

RTC503413 110 Watt Solar Panel, includes Mounting & Wiring 2 910.00 1,820.00

RTC500645 108 Amp Hour Battery 4 437.00 1,748.00

RTC Pole 15' 15' spun alum pole w/base, anchor bolts and collar 4 658.33 2,633.32

RTC501422 12" Signal Heads, Poly, Yellow 4 166.60 666.40

RTC502463-8W 12" Amber DC LED's Pixelated 4 90.00 360.00

RTC503525Y 10dB Yagi Antenna w/Mounting Bracket 3 241.67 725.01

RTC505472-5 5dB OMNI Antenna w/o Mounting 1 201.67 201.67

RTC505472-B Mounting Bracket for 5dB OMNI Antenna on 1.5" Pole 1 48.33 48.33

Page 1



Quote
Date

9/16/2016

Quote #

6281

Name / Address

Town of Altavista
Attn:  David Garrett
P. O. Box 420
Altavista, VA 24517

Ship To

Town of Altavista
Public Works Building
1311 3rd Street
Altavista, VA 24517

Terms

Net 30

Rep

Perry

FOB

Destination

Delivery

6 Weeks ARO

Total

Customer Contact

David Garrett

Customer Fax

434-369-6981

Credit Cards Accepted (AMEX, VISA, MC)
Credit For New Customers Must Be Approved Before Acceptance Of Purchase Order

**PRICES GOOD FOR 30 CALENDAR DAYS FROM DATE OF THIS QUOTE.
Minimum restock fee of 25% will be charged for all items returned in new (unused) condition.
This Quotation includes and specifically incorporates herein by reference all terms and conditions set forth on the attached Special Terms & Conditions.
Acceptance of this Quotation by Buyer shall constitute acceptance of all terms herein as well as those set forth in the Special Terms and Conditions.

J. O. Herbert Company, Inc.
12626 Wilfong Drive
P. O. Box 5450
Midlothian, VA 23112
804-763-6480 / (fax)804-763-6490

Commonwealth of Virginia
SWaM certification

 #009860

Item Description Qty Cost Total

RTC505472L-25 25' 240 Series Antenna Lead Only. (No Lightning
Suppressor)

4 56.67 226.68

RTC TC26-B Microwave Detector 2 2,313.85 4,627.70

NOTE:
Signs are NOT Included.
System designed to be mounted on 4.5" OD pole.

Page 2

$24,737.11



Traffic-Control Safety Since 1987

RTC-Traffic.com | contact our team at Info@RTC-Traffic.com for more information | toll-free 800.782.8721

RTC Manufacturing, Inc., 1016 Enterprise Place, Arlington, Texas 76001 | ©2014 RTC Manufacturing, Inc.  All Rights Reserved.

Solar or AC-Powered Flasher System

RTC 24-HOUR FLASHER SYSTEM

RTC manufactures reliable solar and  

AC-powered 24-Hour Flashing Systems  

that can be used to warn drivers of whatever 

lies ahead. Choose the all new FlashCube™  

top-of-pole-mounted cabinet (shown here) or 

our traditional side-of-pole mounted cabinet. 

Both units feature our reliable 12" 24-hour 

flashing beacons that are proven to stand up  

in all weather conditions.



COMPLIANCE
— Flasher Circuit Interface: NEMA certified
— Solar Regulator: for use in CII, Div 2, Gp ABCD hazardous locations, operating temperature -40 to +85°C

COMPONENT MANUFACTURER WARRANTIES
— All RTC components carry our five-year limited warranty in materials and workmanship. Radios carry a 
 one-year standard manufacturer’s warranty and batteries carry a two-year standard manufacturer’s warranty

100714

RTC-Traffic.com | contact our team at Info@RTC-Traffic.com for more information | toll-free 800.782.8721

RTC Manufacturing, Inc., 1016 Enterprise Place, Arlington, Texas 76001 | ©2014 RTC Manufacturing, Inc.  All Rights Reserved.

.125" 5052 

heavy-duty  

aluminum cabinet 

houses electronics  

and gel-cell battery. 

Meets or exceeds 

NEMA standards.

Solar sizing  

engineered to fit 

your location.

Solar or AC-Powered Flasher System

RTC 24-HOUR FLASHER SYSTEM

FEATURES
— Solar or AC application
— For solar applications, choose between a standard cabinet or the easy-to-install FlashCube™
— Poly or aluminum heads with 12" LED modules
— 4.5" spun aluminum or powder coated black pole with breakaway base
— MUTCD Warning Signs: Stop Sign Ahead, Pedestrian Crossing Ahead,  

High Water Ahead, Curve Ahead, T-Intersection Ahead, Signal Ahead, etc.
— 12-volt gel-cell battery rated as non-spillable, scalable to fit requirement
— Natural or black powder-coated .125" 5052 heavy duty aluminum cabinet
— Signal head and visor colors to meet agency specifications

SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
  DESCRIPTION

 SOLAR ARRAY  20 to 110-watt as needed, mounts to fit all varieties of pole;
   guaranteed power output 90% of rated wattage for 10 years; 80% for 25 years

 SOLAR CABINET NEMA 3R Type, fabricated of .125" sheet aluminum with standard police lock
   and key, includes a two-circuit plug-in NEMA flasher and base, 
   14"H x 14"W x 11"D (optional 7" depth available)

 AC CABINET NEMA 3R-Type, fabricated of .125" sheet aluminum with standard police lock
   and key, includes a two-circuit plug-in NEMA flasher and base, 
   14"H x 14"W x 11"D (optional 7" depth available)

 AC LINE  - Repetitive peak surge current: 15000 Amps
 ARRESTOR - Peak surge voltage (at 10KA): 680 Volts
  - Energy handling: 220 Joules
  - Power dissipation rate: 15 Watts Max.
  - Continuous AC voltage: 150 VAC RMS
  - Peak voltage (1ma): 212 Volts
  - Typical capacitance: 4000 Picofarads
  - Operation temperature: -40 to +85C

 POLE  Pelco 4.5"W x 15'H spun aluminum or black powder-coated pole, square break-away base  
  with 12" x 14.5" dia. bolt pattern, plastic door, reinforcing collar and anchor bolts

 SIGNS MUTCD Warning Signs: Stop Sign Ahead, Pedestrian Crossing Ahead, High Water Ahead, 
  Curve Ahead, T-Intersection Ahead, Signal Ahead, etc., engineering-grade sheeting, optional 
   diamond grade (yellow or fluorescent yellow-green) or optional high-intensity prismatic  
  (yellow or fluorescent yellow-green) 

 BATTERY 12-volt sealed battery, rated as non-spillable, in 33, 58, and 108 AH

 CONTROL PANEL Interface panel and 10-amp solar regulator with low voltage disconnect (LVD) 
  to protect the battery from over-discharge



Helping Kids Get To School Since 1987

BATTERY SYSTEM CABINETS

RTC-Traffic.com | contact our team at Info@RTC-Traffic.com for more information | toll-free 800.782.8721  fax 817.274.3610

RTC Manufacturing, Inc., 1016 Enterprise Place, Arlington, Texas 76001 | ©2014 RTC Manufacturing, Inc.  All Rights Reserved.

RTC Manufacturing constructs flasher system cabinets to house battery-powered 

control panels in a wide range of configurations to meet your specifications.  

Sleek design and excellent features — exactly what you should expect from  

the industry leaders at RTC.

APPLICATIONS
— School zone flasher systems
— Pedestrian crossing systems
— Fire station warning systems
— 24-hour flasher systems
— Oil/gas systems
— Supplemental traffic applications 
— Installations requiring small cabinet space

FEATURES
— Slam locking system with Number 2 APL lock
— Rain flap extending over door opening
— Door opening with a 1.5" door gasket
— Double-thick reinforced bracket mounting area
— 4 screened vents for cross-ventilation
— 4.5" u-bolt, large pole and band-type brackets
— Special Order Options:
	 •	various	control	panels	depending	on	application
	 •	Number	1	APL	lock
	 •	wide	range	of	size	configurations

SINGLE BATTERY CABINET
.125" 5052 aluminum cabinet constructed to house a 
single 108 amp battery with a front mounted control panel. 
The sturdy construction allows for pole mounting.

SPECIFICATIONS
— 16.25"H x 18"W x 12.5"D
— .125" 5052 aluminum-sheet construction
— Number 1 APL lock
— Piano-door hinge with stainless attachment bolts
— Necked-down door opening creates a clean appearance
— .5" foam in battery area
— Top edge flattened to match rubber gasket for greater 

water resistance
—  Silicon sealant top and bottom inside edges per  

TXDOT specifications
— Large enough for a Group 31, 70 lb. 108-amp battery



BATTERY SYSTEM CABINETS

RTC-Traffic.com | contact our team at Info@RTC-Traffic.com for more information | toll-free 800.782.8721  fax 817.274.3610

RTC Manufacturing, Inc., 1016 Enterprise Place, Arlington, Texas 76001 | ©2014 RTC Manufacturing, Inc.  All Rights Reserved. 072214

TWO BATTERY CABINET
.125" 5052 aluminum cabinet  
constructed to house up to two  
108-amp batteries with a top  
shelf-mounted control panel.  
The sturdy construction allows  
for pole mounting.

FOUR BATTERY CABINET
.125" 5052 aluminum cabinet  
constructed to house up to four  
108-amp batteries with a top  
shelf-mounted control panel.  
The sturdy construction allows  
for pole mounting.

APPLICATIONS
— School zone flasher systems
— Pedestrian crossing systems
— Fire station warning systems
— 24-hour flasher systems
— Oil/gas systems
— Supplemental traffic applications 
— Installations requiring the additional power of two batteries

FEATURES
— Slam locking system with Number 2 APL lock
— Rain flap extending over door opening
— Door opening with a 1.5" door gasket
— Double-thick reinforced bracket mounting area
— Screened vents for cross-ventilation
— 4.5" u-bolt, large pole and band-type brackets
— Special Order Options:
	 •	various	control	panels	depending	on	application
	 •	Number	1	APL	lock
	 •	wide	range	of	size	configurations

SPECIFICATIONS
— 26"H x 17"W x 15.75"D
— .125" 5052 aluminum-sheet construction
— .25" construction at the two 8"W x 6"H mounting areas
— .5" foam in the battery areas
— Bottom battery area - 12.75"H
— Number 2 APL lock with padlock hasp/stainless  

through-door mechanism
— Top edge flattened to match rubber gasket for greater  

water resistance
— Silicon sealant top and bottom inside edges per  

TXDOT specifications
— Piano-door hinge with stainless attachment bolts
— Handle with .625" square bar for long life
 — Large enough for two Group 31, 70 lb. 108-amp batteries
— Optional: 3-point locking door with .5" nylon rollers on  

top and bottom

APPLICATIONS
— School zone flasher systems
— Pedestrian crossing systems
— Fire station warning systems
— 24-hour flasher systems
— Oil/gas systems
— Supplemental traffic applications 
— Installations requiring the additional power of four batteries

FEATURES
— Slam locking system with Number 2 APL lock
— Rain flap extending over door opening
— Door opening with a 1.5" door gasket
— Double-thick reinforced bracket mounting area
— Screened vents for cross-ventilation
— 4.5" u-bolt, large pole and band-type brackets
— Special Order Options:
	 •	various	control	panels	depending	on	application
	 •	Number	1	APL	lock
	 •	wide	range	of	size	configurations

SPECIFICATIONS
— 40.125"H x 17"W x 12.75"D
— .125" 5052 aluminum-sheet construction
— .25" construction at the two 8" x 6" mounting areas
— .5" foam in the battery areas
— 2 bottom battery areas - 12.75"H each
— Number 2 APL lock with padlock hasp/stainless  

through-door mechanism
— Top edge flattened to match rubber gasket for greater  

water resistance
— Silicon sealant top and bottom inside edges per  

TXDOT specifications
— Piano-door hinge with stainless attachment bolts
— Handle with .625" square bar for long life
 — Large enough for four Group 31, 70 lb. 108-amp batteries
— Optional: 3-point locking door with .5" nylon rollers on  

top and bottom



 

 

W
O

R
K

SE
SS

IO
N

 
          

Agenda Item __6d__ 

 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Worksession Agenda Form 

 

Date:  September 27, 2016 

 
Agenda Item:  Clarion Road Truck Crossing Update 

 

Summary:   Previously, staff briefed Council on concerns from Abbot Nutrition in regard to 

“near accidents” on Clarion Road involving the crossing of Clarion Road by their trucks from the 

lot to the warehouse.  Staff was asked to look into some type of warning mechanism that will bring 

attention to motorist on Clarion Road in regard to trucks crossing the road at the Abbott facility. 

Attached are two proposals for “warning signals” on the road, a brief description of the proposals 

follows: 

 

Proposal “A”:  24 Hour Flasher with Solar Panel and a two battery cabinet.  This device would 

flash constantly.   Material Costs (not including installation and signs):   $11,802.06 

 

Proposal “B”:  Radio/Microwave Controlled Flasher with Solar Panel and a two battery cabinet.   

A microwave would be located on each side of the road on the Abbott property which would 

respond when a truck was getting ready to cross the road and this would activate the signals on 

Clarion Road.  Material Costs (not including installation and signs):  $24,737.11 

 

Budget/Funding:   Staff believes that VDOT Highway Funds can be used for this item. 

  

Legal Evaluation:  Town Attorney will be available for questions. 

 

Attachment:  Proposal “A”; Proposal “B”; and Flasher System and Battery Cabinet diagrams 
and specifications. 

 

Council Recommendation:  

   Additional Worksession     Regular Meeting       No Action 



 

Agenda Item:  __8h __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Consideration of Rt. 29 Bridge Light project 

 

Summary:  As you are aware, VDOT is moving forward with the Rt. 29 Bridge Replacement (over the 
Staunton River) Project.  The tentative schedule for advertisement for construction is September 2018.  
During the process of getting approval of the bridge design, there was conversation about the possibility 
of having lights installed across the bridge, as well on the approaches leading up to the bridge.  Staff has 
worked with VDOT’s consultant, AECOM, in regard to analyzing the layout of lights, as well as a potential 
cost.  VDOT has indicated that no funds are included in the bridge project for lights, but has agreed to 
include in their bridge design the pedestals and the conduit for lighting that would provide for lighting to 
be installed after the bridge construction if complete.   

 

Attached is AECOM’s DRAFT Lighting Cost Study, which sets forth two options for lighting, one would 
provide lights on both sides, while the other would provide lighting only along the walkway.   Staff believes 
lights on the bridge is very important, especially with the walkway encouraging pedestrian use.  It is our 
recommendation that we pursue AECOM’s “Pedestrian Lighting Alternative”, which proposes lighting on 
the northern (walkway) side of the bridge.  The estimated cost that would cover the bridge, the approaches 
from both Hurt and Altavista is $278,123, with an annual energy cost of $836.  Staff feels that during the 
two year lead up to actual bidding of the project, we can seek joint funding with the Town of Hurt through 
VDOT grant programs (i.e. HISP, TAP, or Revenue Sharing).  Staff is seeking Council’s input and direction 
on this item. 

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Per Council’s discussion.    

 
 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  AECOM DRAFT Lighting Cost Study 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:    

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   







 

Agenda Item:  __8i __ 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: December 13, 2016 

 

Agenda Item:  Consideration of WWTP EOP PCB project proposals 

 

Summary:  Previously Council requested that staff consult with Dr. Scott Lowman (IALR) in regard to a 
proposal to sample Plot #7 prior to proceeding with planting of mulberry trees at a specific location.  The 
proposal from Dr. Lowman is attached. 

Also, following a visit by the University of Iowa team to gather additional samples, staff received the 
attached email regarding possible projects and funding sources.   

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Per Council’s discussion.    

 
 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item? Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  IALR Proposal; Email from Dr. Tim Mattes (University of Iowa) 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:    

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable:    

Town Manager initials and /or comments:   JWC 

 

 

   



 

 

Estimate for In-Pond Research (Plot 7) 

 

11/22/16 

 

Summary of Tasks:  

 

1) Locate the previously identified hot spot in plot 7 and grid a 10ft x 10ft area to test 

bioremediation utilizing mulberry bushes or soft rush.  

2) Establish base-line PCB levels by randomly sampling 10 locations 

3) Plant 20 plants in the gridded area, leaving 3 areas empty as controls 

4) Allow the plants to grow for a season 

5) Resample the plot at the end of the growing season to determine if any changes 

have occurred.  

 

Summary of Costs:  

 

 Initial work and sample gathering:     $1200 

 Sample analysis (REI Labs)     $1200 

 Site gridding, including establishment of proper controls 

and planting approximately 20 plants   $500 

 End of season sample gathering:     $600 

 Sample analysis (REI Labs)     $1200 

 Data analysis and report generation    $500 

 

Total cost:  $5200 

 

Please let us know if you have any questions.  
 
Thanks, 
 
J. Scott Lowman, Ph.D. 
Senior Scientist  
The Institute for Advanced Learning and Research  
Danville Virginia, 24540 
434-766-6628 



 

 

 



Email from Tim Mattes, Phd, Univeristy of Iowa  -  Proposal to Department of Defense 

 Received November 21, 2016 

 
 
Hi Waverly, 
 
Please find attached a summary of our sampling trip for your information.  We wrote this up in request 
from Jay H. for some information to give to the local newspapers.  I wanted to make you aware of this, 
and hopefully it is ok with you. 
 
I also wanted to let you know that I would like to lead a proposal to a different funding agency 
(Department of Defense) that will allow us to broaden the scope of our research that involves plants and 
microorganisms working together to degrade PCBs.  The process for funding is competitive and takes a 
while to come to fruition (and may not come to fruition).  Initially, we will need to submit a pre-proposal 
in early January 2017.  We will find out if we are selected to write a full proposal in February 2017.  If 
this happens, then the proposal is viable and has a decent chance of funding. 
 
The project (still in early planning stages), would feature Altavista as we  have developed a working 
relationship with you and other stakeholders. It could provide funding that will help substantially defray 
the costs of building a new berm and implementing the split plot design at Altavista (i.e. the "Plan A" for 
our current NIH funded project that was declined by the town council).  If we decide to go that route. 
Otherwise the potential new project would require us to obtain much larger volumes of sediment to do 
pilot scale experiments with trees.  This would have to happen back in Iowa.  We don't think that taking 
some sediment out of the lagoon and up to the surface at the lagoon will likely to be approved by the 
town and other regulatory agencies. 
 
So, before I spend any time developing this idea, I wanted to explain the basic idea and ask if you (and 
the town council) are willing, in principle, for an expansion of our research activities. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns about this. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to sample at Altavista and hope we can continue working together in the 
future. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Tim 
 
 
-- 
Timothy E. Mattes, PhD, PE 
Associate Professor 
Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering The University of Iowa 
319-335-5065 
319-335-5660 (fax) 
 



 

Agenda Item:  __8j __ 

 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date:  December 13, 2016 

 
Agenda Item:   Town Cell Phone Policy 

 

Summary:    The Town participates in the VML insurance programs and VML offers incentives in the 
form of reduced rates for implementing safety programs, such as the Defensive/Safe Driving Program.  
Because of the frequency of accidents (in Virginia and nation-wide) related to distracted driving while using 
a cell phone, VML is requiring a hands free policy if the Town wants to continue receiving reduced rate 
premiums.  A template was provided by VML (attached) and staff has tailored this policy for the Town 
and received approval from VML; however, Council must also adopt the policy.  

 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable:  

Staff recommends that Council adopt the Town Cell Phone Policy 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  

I move that Council adopts the Town Cell Phone Policy and that the policy be implemented beginning 
January 1, 2017.   

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?    Yes 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Town Cell Phone Policy 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable: dnw    

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments:  JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

   

   

 



 

Agenda Item:  __8j __ 

 

 Town Cell Phone Policy 

 

The Town of Altavista deeply values the safety and well-being of all employees. Due to the 
increasing number of crashes from all drivers, not just employees, resulting from the use of cell 
phones while driving, we are instituting a new policy. Town Employees may not use cellular 
telephones (talk, text or email) or mobile electronic devices (town or personal owned) while 
operating a motor vehicle or equipment under any of the following situations: 

 

 When employee is operating a vehicle or equipment owned, leased or rented by the Town; 

 When the employee is operating a personal motor vehicle in connection with Town business; 

 When the cellular telephone or mobile electronic device is Town owned or leased; 

 If the vehicle or equipment does not have hands free capabilities.   

 

When operating a vehicle or equipment and a call or communication is received, the employee has 
several options that will keep the employee safe and in compliance with this policy: 

 

 Answer using the hands free capabilities of the vehicle or equipment; 
 Allow the call to go to voice mail and respond once the vehicle is stopped or the equipment is 

no longer being operated; or,  
 Pull the vehicle off the road to a safe location and respond to the call or electronic 

communication.   
 

(Violation of this policy will result in discipline up to and including termination.)  Employees 
will be given two warnings. The third time an employee is found to be in violation of this policy, it is 
grounds for immediate dismissal. 

 

Your signature below certifies your agreement to comply with this policy. 

 

 

____________________________   ________________________________ 

Employee Signature     Date 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Supervisor or Witness  

  



  

Town Manager’s Report – For Month of November 2016 
 
 
Main Street Waterline Project (Project 1B) 

 

 Final Payment (Retainage) has been made. 

 Project is complete. 

 

Booker Building  
 

 Preliminary Report submitted to Council in November. 

 

 

WWTP EOP – PCB Remediation 
 

 Receipt of proposal from IALR (Dr. Lowman) in regard to sampling of Plot 7. 

 Receipt of proposal from University of Iowa (Dr. Mattes) in regard to possible project that 

would be submitted to Department of Defense for consideration. 

 

 
Compensation/Classification Plan Study 
 

 Tentatively this item will be discussed with Council at the January Work Session. 
 
 
Water Plant Projects 

 Water Model/GIS Mapping – Delivery date of December 30, 2016 
 Water Plant Electrical Upgrades – 90% plans submitted for review. 
 SCADACheck – Working on scheduling a presentation to Town Council (Jan. or Feb. Work 

Session) 
 SCADA Phase 1:  Soliciting bids on the panels (Estimated Completion:  May 2017) 
 Melinda Tank High Pressure Zone – waiting on water model to do a final analysis in regard to 

the High Pressure Zone 

 


	01 December Agenda
	02 Staff Report_Recognitions_Presentations
	02a PROCLAMATION FOR AUTUMN CARE OF ALTAVISTA
	02b AOT Mural flyer
	03 Staff Report _ Consent Agenda
	03a Council Meeting-Work Session November 22, 2016
	03b Check Register November 2016
	03c November 2016_Revenue_Expenditure Report
	03d November 2016_Reserve Balance_Investment Report
	03e Budget Amendments_Staff Report
	03f Budget Amendments_Nov 2016
	03g APD Badge Protype
	03h Proposed Budget Calendar for FY 2018
	04 FY2018 Budget_CIP Citizen Input_Staff Report
	05 TK Transport Vehicle for Hire App_Staff Report
	05a Certificate of PCN_TKs Transport_Renewal
	06 Joy Foods Utility Adjustment Request_Staff Report
	06a Joy Foods Info
	06b Abbott Email Utility Adjustment
	06c Water adjustment policy Revision draft
	07 English Park_Staff Report_Nov
	07a English Park Attachments
	08 CY2017 Council Meeting Calendar Consideration_Staff Report
	08a CY 2017 Town Council Schedule
	09 ACTS FY2018 Budget Request_Staff Report
	09a ACTS Budget Request FY2018
	09b ACTS_Supplemental Info_Trolley
	10 APD Personnel Reqeustl_Staff Report
	10a APD Chief Milnor memo
	11 Clarion Road Signal_Staff Report
	11a Clarion Road_Flasher_Quote
	11b Clarion Road Flasher Quote 2
	11c Flasher 24 Brochure
	11d Battery System Brochure
	11e Clarion Road_Warning Signal Update_Staff Report
	12 Rt 29 Bridge Lighting Project_Staff Report
	12a Bridge Light Project Info
	13 WWTP EOP_PCB Proposals_Staff Report
	13a IALR Sampling Proposal (Lowman)
	13b U of Iowa_DoD proposal
	14 Town Cell Phone Policy December 13, 2016 Mtg
	15 Town Managers Report
	16a MEALS TAX REPORT
	16b Sales Tax Report
	16c Council Report for Waverly
	16d APD Monthly Report
	16e ED Monthly Report November 2016
	16f AOT November Monthly Report
	16g Community Development Report December 13, 2016
	16h Monthly Report PW Utilities November2016
	16i ACTS RIDER TALLY November  2016
	December 2016-January 2017 Calendar



